
APPROVED MINUTES 
Town of Goshen Planning Board 

Town Hall 
41 Webster Avenue 
Goshen, New York 
September 4, 2014 

 
Members Present:                                                              Also Present: 
Reynell Andrews                                                                  Sean Hoffman, PB Engineer 
Lee Bergus, Chair        Kelly Naughton, Esq. PB Attorney 
Susan Cleaver         Richard Golden, Esq. PB Attorney 
Phil Dropkin         Neal Halloran, Building Inspector 
David Gawronski  
John Lupinski 
Giovanni Pirraglia 
 
The PB meeting was opened at 7:30 p.m. by Chair Lee Bergus. 
 
Possible Extension or Abandonment of Applications pursuant to Town Code: 
 
5 Spoke Creamery 
 
A letter was received from the applicant stating the progress made on the project but asking for 
a six month extension on its conditional final subdivision approval.   
 
VOTE BY PROPER MOTION, made by Mr. Dropkin, seconded by Ms. Cleaver, The Town of 
Goshen Planning Board grants an extension to February 19, 2015 on the application of 5 Spoke 
Creamery.  Approved Unanimously. 
 
Mr. Andrews   Aye     Mr. Gawronski     Aye   
Mr. Bergus   Aye  Mr. Lupinski  Aye 
Ms. Cleaver   Aye                    Mr. Pirraglia          Aye 
Mr. Dropkin   Aye 
 
Persoon 
 
A letter was received by the PB from Vincent Pietrzak of Pietrzak & Pfau stating that they are 
now the project engineers, along with a letter from Nichols Rugnetta of Pietrzak & Pfau dated 
September 2, 2014 listing in detail the 30 items, out of 48, that have been satisfied on the 
Conditional Final Approval. The applicant is requesting an extension of the approval.  
 
VOTE BY PROPER MOTION, made by Mr. Pirraglia, seconded by Mr. Andrews, The Town of 
Goshen Planning Board grants an extension of the Conditional Final Approval on Persoon to  
February 19, 2015.  Approved Unanimously. 



Town of Goshen Planning Board                                                                                       Page 2 
 
Mr. Andrews   Aye     Mr. Gawronski     Aye   
Mr. Bergus   Aye  Mr. Lupinski  Aye 
Ms. Cleaver   Aye                    Mr. Pirraglia          Aye 
Mr. Dropkin   Aye 
 
Items for Discussion/Action 
 
Maplewood Village (aka ADC Orange, Inc.) 8-1-1.1 & 48 Application for a residential 
subdivision for 68 single family units on 95.4 +/- acres on Coleman and Craigville Roads (County 
Route 66) in the RU District with AQ-6, Scenic Road Corridor and Stream Corridor overlays.  
Discuss project revisions and SEQRA DEIS. 
 
Representing the applicant:    Maximillian Stach, Turner Miller Group 
  
PB member Susan Cleaver recused herself and took a seat in the audience. 
 
Mr. Stach said he brought revisions to the project design pursuant to the SEQRA. 
He said that when the project was started several years ago, it was a 250 unit mixed use 
development and later was reduced to 103 units, through a Stipulation of Settlement between 
the Town of Goshen and the developer. 
 
Mr. Stach said that a Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) was submitted in 2011 and 
the PB consultants provided feedback specifically on water and sewer. Due to costs associated 
with sewer hookups, the developer decided that rather than build 48 adult-only town house 
units (on one side of the property), 20 single family units would be built instead. Now, Mr. 
Stach said, the project consists of 68 single family units in a conforming subdivision.  
 
The DEIS that the PB has before it is a document that reflects the impacts of the larger, original  
development, Mr. Stach said. The applicant wants to rely on that document, adjust it to reflect 
the comments of the PB’s consultants and update it to reflect the new plan, which will have a 
reduced unit count.  Mr. Stach asked that the PB consent to revising the document. 
  
Mr. Hoffman said that the consultants met last month with the applicant to go over the new 
plan and discussed the difference between the single family units and the PAC. He called it a 
dramatic unit count reduction.  Now it needs to be determined if the impacts are in fact 
reduced, he said.  
 
Mr. Stach said that the studies of the traffic, demographics, fiscal impacts and number of school 
children, will be reviewed in light of the new proposal.  
 
Mr. Dropkin asked if the Environmental Impact Statement will address the same issues but will 
address those issues looking at the lesser scope of the original proposed project. Mr. Stach 



Town of Goshen Planning Board                                                                                       Page 3 
 
agreed that it would, stating that the applicant wants to rely on the old studies, such as traffic, 
demographics and fiscal impact but re-look at them with the new mix. It is their hope that they 
can proceed this way rather than create everything over again. The applicant will submit a full 
DEIS for PB consideration, he said.  
 
Mr. Bergus polled the PB members who agreed that the applicant can proceed with the 
modifications to the DEIS and submit it in its entirety. 
 
Mr. Gawronski asked that a thorough analysis be taken of the water usage for the revised 
project. 
 
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (aka AT&T 6-1/2 Station Road – 10-1-56.2 Application for site 
plan and special permit for a wireless telecommunications facility on 49.80 +/- acres on 6-1/2 
Station and Cheechunk in the CO District with AQ-6 and Scenic Road Corridor overlays.  Initial 
presentation and commence SEQRA. 
 
Representing the applicant:    Anthony Morando, Esq. 
 
Mr. Morando said the applicant wants to construct a wireless telecommunications facility on a 
large parcel of land located off of Cheechunk and 6-1/2 Station Roads. The facility will support 
AT&T and three additional carriers in the future, he said. The site is 49 acres in a commercial 
mixed use district and abuts a residential zone to the north. There is no alternative location to 
provide coverage in this area that will not abut a residential zone, he said, adding that the 
applicant believes this is the best site. He said the facility will set back 1100 ft. from the nearest 
residences and 800 ft. from the nearest road, and will be located near other public and 
institutional buildings such as the county jail and 911 Center. After explaining how AT&T  
analyses possible sites, he said that the company has looked at existing facilities but eliminated 
them as not meeting their needs.  
 
Mr. Morando said the facility will be a 150 ft. self-support monopole with a base consisting of 6 
ft. fencing to accommodate equipment for ATT and future carriers. The applicant wants to 
extend the 12 ft. wide gravel driveway that is currently there, off of Cheechunk Rd. 
 
Mr. Hoffman said that the Town’s wireless consultant, Mr. Comi, will review the application and 
report to the PB.  Mr. Hoffman said that his own comments are limited to engineering and 
noted that there are two or three large trees that may be impacted if the driveway is extended. 
He also noted the slope of the driveway. Mr. Hoffman said there was a 2007 wetland inspection 
and that the applicant will do a delineation of the wetlands. Mr. Hoffman also pointed out that 
the Town Code requires that the electric service be underground, but that the applicant is 
asking for a waiver of this. He said the Code also requires notification of municipalities within a 
certain distance. 
 



Town of Goshen Planning Board                                                                                       Page 4 
 
Mr. Golden said that the PB has waiver powers and should first request a detailed narrative 
from the applicant as to why the PB should waive the requirement.  Mr. Golden also said that 
the application is not ready to be scheduled for a public hearing and that the PB first needs to 
hear from its consultant, Mr. Comi.   
 
Ms. Cleaver requested that the applicant provide copies to the Town’s Cell Tower Committee.  
 
The PB discussed the obligation, under the Town Code, to remove the tower if its use is 
terminated.    
 
Mr. Dropkin asked if the applicant considered co-locating with the County.  Mr. Morando said 
that it has been discussed with the new county administration and that the County is not 
interested. 
 
Mr. Gawronski asked if the applicant could change the route of the driveway and Mr. Morando 
said he will talk to the engineers about it. 
 
VOTE BY PROPER MOTION, made by Mr. Dropkin, seconded by Mr. Gawronski, The Town of 
Goshen Planning Board declares its intent to be lead agency on the application of New Cingular 
Wireless.   Approved Unanimously. 
 
Mr. Andrews   Aye     Mr. Gawronski     Aye   
Mr. Bergus   Aye  Mr. Lupinski  Aye 
Ms. Cleaver   Aye                    Mr. Pirraglia          Aye 
Mr. Dropkin   Aye 
 
VOTE BY PROPER MOTION, made by Mr. Andrews, seconded by Ms. Cleaver, The Town of 
Goshen Planning Board types the application of New Cingular Wireless as an Unlisted Action.   
Approved Unanimously. 
 
Mr. Andrews   Aye     Mr. Gawronski     Aye   
Mr. Bergus   Aye  Mr. Lupinski  Aye 
Ms. Cleaver   Aye                    Mr. Pirraglia          Aye 
Mr. Dropkin   Aye 
 
Amy’s Kitchen, Inc. – 12-1-24.2 – Revised application for a site plan and special permit for a 
proposed manufacturing plant on a 212.267 acre tract (total holdings) with frontage along NYS 
Route 17M and Echo Lake Road in the Industrial (I), Commercial/Office and RU Districts with 
AQ3 and Flood Plain & Ponding Area overlays. Site plan update. 
 
Representing the applicant:   John O’Rourke, Lanc & Tully 
                                                                                Kristen O’Donnell, Turner Miller Group 



Town of Goshen Planning Board                                                                                       Page 5 
    
Mr. O’Rourke said the original application has been modified. Originally Amy’s Kitchen and 
Science of the Soul were all on one parcel, he said, but now the entire site will be dedicated to 
Amy’s.  Science of the Soul is looking for other property and will submit a separate application.  
 
Instead of Science of the Soul’s convention center, residences, and parking space, Amy’s will 
use that portion of the land for a warehouse to store dry goods such as their finished product 
and packing materials. 
 
This will be a three phase project, Mr. O’Rourke said, Phase 1 is the approximately 200,000 
square ft. plant, Phase 2 is an addition to the plant bringing its total to approximately 350,000 
square ft. and Phase 3 will be the warehouse. Once Phase 1 is running, they will permit for 
Phase 2.  
 
Amy’s is now smaller, with the total square footage going from 600,000 sq. ft. to approximately 
350,000 sq. ft., Mr. O’Rourke said. The project will still include a health care center for 
employees, offices, waste water treatment and the use of wells on site. Due to this reduction in 
size, Mr. O’Rourke said, the building has been shifted away from the Wallkill River and some of 
the grading and disturbance has been eliminated.   
 
Mr. O’Rourke said there is a revised Scope and asked the PB to review and comment on it.  
 
Mr. Hoffman said that he received the revised Scope this morning and has no comments at this 
time. 
 
Mr. Golden confirmed with Mr. O’Rourke that this is now a site plan application and no longer a 
subdivision site plan application. Mr. Golden said that the PB has already gone through the 
process of a public scoping session on the original plan. He said the question now is whether 
the PB thinks it needs additional input from the public and if so to what extent. 
 
Mr. Dropkin pointed out that there will be less use and less impact with the removal of Science 
of the Soul.  He noted that there also will be no need for a secondary access road.  Mr. 
O’Rourke confirmed that it will be for emergency access only and that there will be one 
entrance, from 17M. 
 
PB members agreed that since this is a reduction, the elimination of a subdivision and an 
reduction as to scope, size and use, there is no compelling need for further public comment.  
 
Mr. Golden said that the consultants and the PB will review the revised scope, see if there are 
any modifications that the PB will want and then approve the revised scope. It should be ready 
for the PB’s next meeting, September 18. 
 
 



 
Town of Goshen Planning Board                                                                                       Page 6 
 
 
Mr. O’Rourke asked the PB to consider whether there is a need for a tree survey, locating any 
trees over 12 inches in diameter, as is required.  He said that all of these trees will be 
eliminated anyway so the applicant hopes a tree survey is not considered necessary. 
 
Mr. Golden said that currently it states in the scope that the applicant needs to do a tree 
survey, and that the applicant has now requested that be modified and the PB can do so if it so 
decides.  
 
Mr. Pirraglia suggested that a discussion should satisfy the scope, rather than doing an 
inventory. PB members discussed where the trees were on the site and if any trees can be 
saved. Mr. O’Rourke said that if there are trees that can be saved, they want to do so.  
 
Mr. Bergus polled the PB members and they agreed that a general discussion in the scope will 
be responsive to the scope and that a tree inventory is unnecessary. 
 
Ms. Cleaver suggested that everyone do a site walk.  
 
Adjournment  
 
The Planning Board adjourned at 9 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 


